
Civic Centre, Home Gardens, Dartford, Kent, DA1 1DR 
Tel: 01322 343434 Fax: 01322 343422 Web:www.dartford.gov.uk 

 
 
 

Joint 
Transportation 

Board 
 

Mrs A Allen (Chairman) 
Councillor B Garden (Vice-Chairman) 

Mr D Butler - Rhule  
Mrs P Cole 

Mr P Harman 
Mr J Kite 

Mr J Ozog 
Councillor S P Butterfill 
Councillor S N Gosine 

Councillor Mrs J A Ozog 
Councillor L J Reynolds 

Councillor R J Wells 
 

Parish representatives – Ms Y Seymour and Ms S Thredgle  
 

 
A meeting of the above Board will be held virtually on 

 
Tuesday 9 March 2021 

 
Commencing at 5.00pm 

 

 
Strategic Director (Internal Services) 

26 February 2021 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page is intentionally left blank 



 

 
JOINT TRANSPORTATION BOARD  

AGENDA 
 

Tuesday 9 March 2021 
 
 

Viewing this meeting on YouTube 

This meeting may be viewed on YouTube by clicking on, and opening, the link 
below: 
 
https://youtu.be/d695YCWTxoc 
 

1. Apologies for Absence.   

 

2. Declarations of Interest   

 

 To receive declarations of interest from Members including the 
terms(s) of the Grant of Dispensation (if any). 
 

 

3. To confirm the Minutes of the meeting of the Dartford Joint 
Transportation Board held on 8 December 2020  

(Pages 1 - 6) 

 

4. Urgent Items   

 

 The Chairman will announce her decision as to whether there are any 
urgent items and their position on the agenda. 
 

 

5. References from other Committees (if any)   

 

6. Matters Arising from Previous Joint Transportation Board 
meetings  

(Pages 7 - 12) 

KCC 

 This report advises Members on the progress of matters arising at 
previous meetings of the Board. 
 

 

7. Fastrack   

 

 A verbal update on this will be provided by Mr Shane Hymers, the 
KCC Fastrack Development Manager.  
 

 

8. Prioritising the investigation of reported parking issues and 
parking management schemes: Outcome of St Johns Road Pilot 
study - Update  

(Pages 13 - 
30) 

 

https://youtu.be/d695YCWTxoc


 

9. Minor "Traffic Regulation Orders" in Dartford  (Pages 31 - 
34) 

 

 A list of proposed minor TRO’s is attached for Member Information. 
 

 

10. A282 / M25 Jct 1A Collaboration between Dartford Borough 
Council, Highways England, and Kent County Council Highways  

 

 

 Mr Agboola will update Members verbally on this matter. 
 

 

11. Lower Thames Crossing.   

 

 Mr Agboola will update Members verbally on this matter. 
 

 

12. Members Enquiry Items   

 

 Members have the opportunity to raise  the following: - 
 

 Questions in relation to capital and revenue funded works 
programmes 

 Suggestions for future traffic regulation orders or street 
management proposals 

 Questions on policies, plans and strategies related to 
highways, road traffic and public transport. 

 Suggestion of a future agenda item (subject to the Chairman’s 
approval) 

 

 

ITEMS FOR INFORMATION 

13. KCC - Environment and Transport  (Pages 35 - 
44) 

 

 For Members information the following has been attached: - 
 
Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee – Minutes 12 
November 2020 

 
(NB: If a Member wishes to discuss any of these items at the 
meeting, please advise the Member Services Section (01322) 
343251 prior to the meeting). 

 

 

 



1 

DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

JOINT TRANSPORTATION BOARD 
 

MINUTES of the meeting of the Joint Transportation Board held on Tuesday 8 
December 2020 at 5.00 pm 
 

 
PRESENT: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PARISH 
REPRESENTATIVES 
 
Also Present 

Mrs A Allen (Chairman) 
Councillor B Garden (Vice-Chairman) 
 
Mrs P Cole 
Mr Peter Harman  
 
Councillor S P Butterfill 
Councillor S N Gosine 
Councillor Mrs J A Ozog 
Councillor L J Reynolds 
Councillor R J Wells 
 
 
Ms Yvonne Seymour and Ms Stephanie Tredgle 
 
 
Councillor R Currans (DBC) Mr L Agboola Ms S Collins and 
Mr K Longley (DBC).  Ms Denise Sutton (KCC Highways) 
 

 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE.  

 
Apologies for absence were received from Messrs David Butler - Rhule, 
Jeremy Kite, and Jan Ozog. 
 
The Chairman, Councillor Ann Allen welcomed Councillor Sacha Gosine to 
his first meeting of the Board.  Councillor Gosine had replaced Councillor 
Grehan as a Board Member. 
 
The Chairman also welcomed Councillor Currans to the meeting in her 
capacity as lead Member for Town Centre Regeneration. 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of Interest received from any Board Member nor 
from Councillor Currans. 
 

3. TO CONFIRM THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE DARTFORD 
JOINT TRANSPORTATION BOARD HELD ON 22 SEPTEMBER 2020  
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the minutes of the Joint Transportation Board held on 22 September 
2020 be confirmed as a correct record of that Meeting. 
 

Page 1 Agenda Item 3



JOINT TRANSPORTATION BOARD 
 

TUESDAY 8 DECEMBER 2020 
 
 

2 

4. URGENT ITEMS  
 
It was noted that there were no urgent items for the Board to consider. 
 

5. REFERENCES FROM OTHER COMMITTEES (IF ANY)  
 
It was reported that there were no matters referred to the Board for 
consideration. 
 

6. MATTERS ARISING  
 
The Board received a report on matters which were outstanding from previous 
meetings. 
 
The following matters were raised: 
 
Parking Issues Ingress Park:  Mr Harman reported that there had been 
developments on this matter and that he would liaise with the Principal 
Transport Planner on this matter. 
 
Misuse of Busways by Motorists: It had been reported that a detailed report 
to the Cabinet on the use of ANPR cameras to enforce restrictions on the bus 
ways was to be prepared by Mr Hymers, but this had not been presented yet.  
The Board therefore asked that the Clerk contact Mr Hymers to remind him of 
this. 
 
Traffic Congestion arising from the Dartford Crossing: It was noted that a 
brief report on this had been circulated to Members, and that Mr Whittingham 
had asked that questions on this be forwarded to him by Email.  
 
Increased Pavement Provision for A225 Dartford Road at Sutton at Hone 
and Hawley: The Chairman enquired if proposals had ever been passed to 
the relevant County Councillor. 
 
Drainage Dartford Road: 
Chatsworth and Arundel Roads Congestion Issues.  The Chairman asked 
the Clerk to ascertain if these issues had been resolved and could be 
removed from the report. 
 

7. DARTFORD TOWN CENTRE PROGRAMME: UPDATE  
 
The Board received a presentation from Mr Keith Longley the Project 
Manager for the on - going Town Centre redevelopment scheme. 
 
Mr Longley informed Members of the progress made on the scheme so far, 
highlighting the near completion of the first phase, Market Street, with high 
quality paving and street furniture having been installed and with proposed 
improvements to the street scene as a whole being envisaged. 
 

Page 2Agenda Item 3



JOINT TRANSPORTATION BOARD 
 

TUESDAY 8 DECEMBER 2020 
 
 

3 

He reported that designs for phase 1a of the project, the re development of 
the town Market Place (High Street) and Phase 2 (Instone Road) had been 
completed, and a tendering exercise for the works was currently under way. 
 
The successful conclusion of the exercise should allow for a commencement 
of works on these two sections in late January 2021. 
 
Additionally Mr Longley informed the Board of proposals to regenerate the 
area adjoining and around the Two Brewers Public House, as part of phase 2 
including the improvement of a pedestrian corridor and an open space on the 
corner of Instone Road being suggested.  
 
The Board congratulated Mr Longley on the quality of the work completed so 
far and raised points regarding the following matters 
 

 Pedestrian Crossing facilities in Lowfield Street 
 

 Cleaning regimes for the newly created areas, and gum removal  
 

 The total exclusion of vehicular traffic from the High Street  
 

 The provision of bus shelters at West Hill 
 
Arising from these points Mr Longley informed that Board that it was not 
proposed to install controlled crossings in Lowfield Street as traffic speed and 
volume should allow pedestrians opportunity to cross the area with the need 
for these. 
 
With regard to the cleaning of the Town Centre, Mr Longley reported that the 
inherent nature of the paving installed together with the treatment applied to it 
would allow for the easy removal of gum and the like from the paved areas. 
 
The whole area would be subject to a special clean before being handed over 
to Dartford for future maintenance.  
 
It was noted that the current temporary arrangement of bus stops on West Hill 
did not provide cover for bus users but that this would be addressed when 
new sites for the bus stops are developed. 
 
In addition to this it is planned to enclose the sub structure of the pedestrian 
footbridge in Home Gardens to remove the current issues relating to pigeons 
roosting and nesting in the bridge. 
 
With regard to excluding cars from the High Street, it was reported that the 
installation of hydraulic bollards, the closure of a number of access points 
through the provision of alternatives where possible and rigorous enforcement 
would prevent this. 
 

Page 3 Agenda Item 3



JOINT TRANSPORTATION BOARD 
 

TUESDAY 8 DECEMBER 2020 
 
 

4 

The Chairman thanked Mr Longley for his presentation and the Board noted 
that he would report further on the development in due course. 
 

8. A282 JUNCTION 1A: COLLABORATION BETWEEN DARTFORD 
BOROUGH COUNCIL, HIGHWAYS ENGLAND AND KCC - PROGRESS 
UPDATE  
 
The Principal Transport Planner, Mr Agboola, updated the Board on the 
progress of the establishment of a steering group which aims to assess and 
promote measures to lessen the effects of traffic congestion arising from 
junction 1a of the A282 Dartford Crossing Approach Road. 
 
Mr Agboola informed Members that a Memorandum of Agreement and Terms 
of Reference had been agreed for the group and that the establishment of the 
Group had sparked interest from neighbouring Authorities. 
 
Mr Agboola undertook to keep the Board apprised of further developments 
and initiatives at future Board meetings. 
 

9. LOWER THAMES CROSSING - PROGRESS UPDATE, NEXT STEPS AND 
TIMETABLE FOR OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
 
Mr Agboola updated the Board on the progress made to date for the Lower 
Thames Crossing – the proposed new Thames crossing into Essex, east of 
Gravesend.. 
 
It was noted that consultations had taken place between April and August 
2020 and that a number of concerns had been raised, including air quality, 
traffic noise and the impact of construction traffic on local road networks. 
 
Mr Agboola reported that Highways England had submitted an application for 
a Development Consent Order to the Planning Inspectorate in October 2020 
but due to a number of concerns raised by the Inspectorate these had been 
withdrawn for development of further information.  It was likely to be re 
submitted in April 2021. 
 
The Chairman thanked Mr Agboola for his report and asked that the Board be 
updated on progress at the next meeting in March 2021. 
 

10. ADOPTED PARKING GUIDANCE - UPDATE ON THE PILOT FOR THE 
PARKING MANAGEMENT PRIORITISATION SCHEME  
 
The Board was reminded that at the meeting held on 22 September 2020 it 
had considered proposals for a pilot scheme to prioritise requests for parking 
restrictions across the Borough. 
 
It was reported that the introduction of the pilot scheme had been approved by 
Cabinet that the scheme had been operating for a short while and that initial 
results appeared encouraging. 
 

Page 4Agenda Item 3



JOINT TRANSPORTATION BOARD 
 

TUESDAY 8 DECEMBER 2020 
 
 

5 

11. MEMBERS ENQUIRY ITEMS  
 
Members raised the following matters: 
 
Councillor Allen asked if parking problems could be investigated at the 
following sites: Abbey Drive (on the Bexley Park Estate) and Highfield Road 
and Phoenix Place Dartford. 
 
Councillor Garden reported that he had raised two issues before the meeting, 
with KCC: (the criteria for the installation of pedestrian crossings and the 
introduction of weight restrictions on roads) and that he had received 
responses to both his enquiries. 
 
Councillor Garden also informed the Board that Arriva Click had extended its 
service into Ebbsfleet giving residents public transport access into Dartford 
and Gravesend. 
 
Additionally Councillor Lucas Reynolds informed the Board that he had 
received complaints that Arriva had cut the timetable for its 414 route in 
response to low usage.  As this was a rural service, the reduction and vehicle 
size, had resulted in users being unable to board the service with a very long 
wait for the next service. 
 
Councillor Garden enquired if KCC had been made aware of the reductions to 
update their Central Timetable posting.  Ms Sutton agreed to raise this with 
the KCC Public Transport section. 
 
Finally Ms Sutton reminded the Board that Parish councils have the 
opportunity to register requests for highway schemes through the Parish 
Highway Improvement Programme.  
 

12. KCC - ENVIRONMENT AND TRANSPORT CABINET COMMITTEE  
 
The Board received and noted the Minutes of the Kent County Council, 
Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee held on 15 September 2020. 
 
 

 
The meeting closed at 6.38 pm 

 
 Mrs A Allen 

 
 
 

CHAIRMAN 
 
 
 

Page 5 Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



JOINT TRANSPORTATION BOARD 
9 March 2021 

 

 
MATTERS ARISING 

 

1. Summary 

 
 

1.1 This report advises Members on the progress of matters arising at previous 
 meetings of the Board. 

  
2.  RECOMMENDATION 

 
2.1  That Members note the comments in the “Update/Outcome” column of the 

Appendix A to this report 
 

 
 
3 Background and Discussion 
 
3.1 Previously, the Joint Transportation Board requested that a report on 

matters arising be placed on future agendas of this Board. 
 
3.2 The matters arising are as detailed in the Appendix A to this report. 
 
3.3 A verbal update, where applicable, will be given at the meeting of this 

Board. 
 

4    Details of Exempt Information Category 
 
Not applicable 
 

5. Appendices 
 
Appendix A:  Matters Arising 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS: 
 
None  
 

Contact Officers :  As detailed in the Appendix to this report                       

Contact Number: 

 
KCC Highways & Transportation      08458 247 800 
 
Dartford Borough Council  01322 343251 
 

 
 

Page 7 Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



Dartford Joint Transportation Board   
 

9 March 2021 
 

 Action Current Situation Update / Outcome Responsible Officer Due Date 

1 Fast Track – Future Developments  A twice yearly update to 
be made to the Board. 
 
Mr Hymers is to report 
to this Meeting 

KCC Officers may wish 
to update Members 
verbally at meetings. 

Shane Hymers March 2021 

2 14. Parking Issues Ingress Park At the December 
meeting Mr Harman 
reported that there had 
been developments on 
this matter and that he 
would liaise with the 
Principal Transport 
Planner on this.  ` 
 
 

Yellow lines are to be 
installed by Crest 
Nicholson however the 
issue of enforcement 
and the necessary 
TRO are still to be 
resolved 

Principal Transport 
Planner 

 

3 15. Misuse of Busways by Motorists A detailed report on this 
is to be presented to 
Cabinet, as the 
proposals could have 
serious financial impacts 
on DBC.   

It was reported that 
Kent County Council 
have agreed to pursue 
the principle of 
Automatic Number 
Plate Recognition 
(ANPR) enforcement 
for the misuse of 
certain Fastrack route 
ways.  Formal 
adoption of the 
schemes has yet to be 
approved but it was 
hoped that this could 
be achieved toward 
the end of 2020 

Shane Hymers Early 2021 

4 16. Traffic Congestion arising from the 
Dartford Crossing 

Thomas Whittingham of 
Highways England 
circulated a short report 

This is still an ongoing 
issue and Highways 
England have been 

  

P
age 9

A
genda Item

 6



Dartford Joint Transportation Board   
 

9 March 2021 
 

 Action Current Situation Update / Outcome Responsible Officer Due Date 

to the December 
meeting and Members 
were asked to raise 
issues with him direct.  

invited to further 
meeting to report on 
issues 

5 17. Increased Pavement Provision for 
A225 Dartford Road at Sutton at 
Hone and Hawley 

The implementation of 
the scheme has been 
halted as more pressing 
issues have emerged 
that have greater 
priority. 

The Board considered 
a request for better 
footway provision, and 
were advised that a 
costed proposal from 
the relevant KCC 
Member would be 
considered favourably 
by KCC. 

  

6 18. Future of Bus Routes 428/492   Transport for London 
have decided that their 
proposal to withdraw 
routes 428 and 492 
should not be 
implemented, although 
it was noted that the 
decision was be 
reviewed at the end of 
the current Covid 19 
health emergency. 

  

8. 19. Drainage Dartford Road  Mr Ozog has been 
contacted seeking an 
update on this issue 
but has yet to respond. 

  

9. 20. Chatsworth and Arundel Roads.  
Congestion Issues 

A site visit was to be 
arranged to further 
assess the issues in this 
area. 

Cllr Davis has reported 
that he is in contact 
with KCC on this 
matter but that it has 
yet to be fully resolved.   

  

P
age 10

A
genda Item

 6



Dartford Joint Transportation Board   
 

9 March 2021 
 

 Action Current Situation Update / Outcome Responsible Officer Due Date 

Closed Items  Issues removed from the Report since the last meeting:  

 

P
age 11

A
genda Item

 6



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 12



                              

JOINT TRANSPORTATION BOARD 
09 MARCH 2021 

 

 

PRIORITISING THE INVESTIGATION OF REPORTED PARKING 
ISSUES AND PARKING MANAGEMENT SCHEMES – OUTCOME 
OF PILOT STUDY IN ST JOHNS ROAD, STONE WARD 

 

 
1. SUMMARY 

 

1.1 This report outlines the results of the pilot study in St Johns Road using the newly 
adopted parking management guidance.  This adopted guidance is used for 
prioritising reported parking issues in the Borough for investigation and development 
of parking schemes to address identified problems. 

 

2. RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1 That the results of the pilot study in St Johns Road using the newly adopted 

‘Prioritising the investigation and implementation of Parking Management 
Schemes – Guidance’, at Appendix A to the report and follow up actions, set out 
in paras.3.12- 3.17 of the report, be noted. 

 
 

 
3. Background and Discussion 
 

3.1. In September 2020 [Min.No: 146], following consideration by the Board, 
Cabinet approved the adoption of a new parking management guidance 
(Prioritising the investigation and implementation of Parking 
Management Schemes – Guidance) (the Guidance) to support the 
Council’s process for prioritising reported parking issues in the borough.   

3.2. The adopted Guidance (at Appendix A to the report), supports the 
existing Cabinet approval protocols and applicable statutory 
requirements for parking management. The Guidance is aimed at 
providing residents and stakeholder partners, such as Kent County 
Council (KCC) and Parish Councils, with a formalised and consistent 
approach for prioritising the investigation of reported parking issues and 
schemes.  KCC was consulted on the Guidance and is satisfied that it 
falls in line with its policy.  

3.3. The Guidance focusses on promoting a simple, clear and consistent 
appraisal approach looking at the following key factors:  

 Safety 

 Parking issues 

 Level of support 

 Evidence 

3.4. It was agreed that a pilot study using the adopted Guidance should be 
undertaken in St Johns Road, working with local ward members, The 
Brent School, local residents and key stakeholders. 

Page 13 Agenda Item 8



                              

JOINT TRANSPORTATION BOARD 
09 MARCH 2021 

 

 

The Pilot Study – St Johns Road  

3.5. The pilot study started in September 2020 and the aim was to test the 
practical use of the adopted Guidance to investigate reported parking 
issues in St Johns Road.  The pilot was planned to run for three months.  

3.6. Regular liaison meetings, including a site meeting, were held with local 
ward members, the portfolio member and also a representative from The 
Brent School.  Representatives formed the Working Group to manage 
the progress of the pilot study. 

3.7. To help gather feedback from local residents about parking issues in St 
Johns Road based on the criteria set out in the Guidance, local ward 
members wrote to all directly affected residents and businesses in St 
Johns Road with 98 letters sent out.  

3.8. A total of six residents responded. The majority of the feedback from 
local residents was focussed on the parking issues in St Johns Road 
and some off the adjoining roads. A summary of the comments received 
are shown at Appendix B to this report. In addition to comments 
received, various photos and videos were sent to local ward members 
and Officers. 

3.9. The feedback indicated that the majority of those residents who 
responded have concerns about inconsiderate parking at the Almond 
Road junction with St Johns Road.  This was not only linked to short term 
parking associated with The Brent School, but also parking at the 
junction that tend to interfere with the free flow of traffic with potential 
implication on road safety.  Furthermore, Officers were aware that KCC 
(Highways, Transportation & Waste Department) was consulting on a 
scheme to amend Hillhouse Road (an adjoining road to Almond Road) 
to one way working which was out to public consultation in December 
2020. 

3.10. As a result of the feedback received, Officers submitted comments to 
KCC requesting consideration of the issues at the Almond Road/St 
Johns Road junction as part of the one way scheme in Hillhouse Road.  
The one way working proposal to Hillhouse Road could change traffic 
flows and manoeuvres within the area and as evidenced from the 
feedback, parking at the Almond Road junction was already an issue and 
concern for residents. 

3.11. As a result of Officers’ intervention, KCC have agreed to consult affected 
residents in February 2021 on a proposal for ‘At Any time’ waiting 
restrictions (double yellow lines) at the Almond Road junction. A copy of 
this proposal is shown in Appendix C of this report. 

3.12. Following the completion of the resident feedback sent to Members as 
part of the pilot study in December 2020, Officers have reviewed the 
responses and discussed these with the Working Group.  It was agreed 
that there was no justification to include further investigation of parking 
issues in St Johns Road in the Council’s Parking Programme. However, 

Page 14Agenda Item 8



                              

JOINT TRANSPORTATION BOARD 
09 MARCH 2021 

 

 

it was identified that some of the concerns raised can be addressed in 
the short term whilst there are others which will require detailed 
investigation and subject to approval by KCC and Cabinet.  It should be 
noted that Officers are also undertaking a separate exercise working with 
KCC on school safety zones with the aim of implementing 20mph 
measures/initiatives around seven pilot schools in the Borough including 
The Brent School. It is intended that some of the medium to long term 
measures identified below will be picked up as part of this.  

3.13. The table below highlights the short, medium and long term measures 
arising from the feedback received, Officers’ knowledge of the issues in 
the area and KCC highway proposals. 

Short Term Medium Term Long Term 
Promotion of restrictions to 
Almond Road junction with St 
Johns Road.  To be progressed 
by KCC in early 2021. 
 
 
 

The site will be investigated 
for time limited drop off points 
for the school and/or 
amendments to the 
operational times of the 
School Keep Clear Marking 
outside the pedestrian 
access.  At this current time, 
the operation of the school 
has been impacted with a 
change of times due to Covid-
19.  However – this will be 
reviewed so any changes 
required for the new 
September 2021 term can be 
in place if required. 

Hillhouse Road is proposed to 
be amended to become one 
way. Depending on the results 
of the KCC consultation, this 
may progress later in 2021. 
This could have an impact on 
St Johns Road and the impact 
of any changes will need to be 
assessed.  Depending on the 
success of this scheme, 
consideration should also be 
given to re-consulting 
residents on a proposal for 
one way working with St 
Johns Road.  To accompany 
any such proposal, traffic 
calming may also be 
necessary to reduce vehicles 
speeds. KCC will be 
progressing investigation to 
introduce 20mph zone in the 
area including St Johns Road 
from April 2021. 

Due to the on-going Covid -19 
situation, school times and 
operations have been 
impacted, but additional 
discussions will continue with 
The Brent School to improve 
the operation of the access 
points. 
 

Additional junctions will be 
investigated and reviewed 
and additional waiting 
restrictions may need to be 
promoted to improve traffic 
flows.  This will include the 
junction with London Road 
and the use of parking from 
the garage. 
 

 

 

3.14. In terms of the specific request by some residents that the Council 
should pay for white lines where houses have dropped kerbs and to 
provide double yellow lines outside houses where there are no dropped 
kerbs, Officers have responded.  With respect to white line markings, 

Page 15 Agenda Item 8



                              

JOINT TRANSPORTATION BOARD 
09 MARCH 2021 

 

 

residents have been advised that individual requests will be considered 
in accordance to Council’s policy and approval is subject to a charge of 
£75. With regard to yellow lines, residents have been advised that the 
Council cannot meet their request as it would not be practical to provide 
yellow line markings for this purpose and would create a precedence. In 
some cases, investigation is prioritised if there are road safety 
implications where there is a history of crashes at the location. This is 
not shown to be the case in St Johns Road. In addition, any obstruction 
issues can be dealt with by the Police.  

Lessons from the Pilot Study 

3.15. It was agreed by the Working Group that the key lesson learnt from the 
Pilot study in St Johns Road was that feedback received from residents 
were not directly related to the criteria set out in the adopted Guidance. 
That feedback from residents is sought by Members and Officers are not 
involved in this process but in order for Parking Schemes to be 
considered they must meet the criteria set out in the Guidance. In order 
to make this clearer it was agreed that future requests for feedback 
should apply the Criteria questions to obtain feedback via letter drops 
and use of online surveys.  

3.16. It was agreed by the Working Group that concerns about parking issues 
in Bow Arrow Lane will be subject to the next pilot study. In light of 
government confirmation that the elections will go ahead and purdah 
commencing on 19th March, the pilot study will be carried out after the 
elections between May and July 2021. Any significant development will 
be fed back to the JTB. A generic terms of reference will also be agreed 
for future pilot studies so that there is a consistent approach for 
managing other pilots/studies. 

3.17. A positive outcome of the adopted Guidance in St Johns Road relates to 
the identification of short, medium and long term issues which can be 
included in the Borough’s Parking Management Programme in the future 
for investigation in consultation with the portfolio member.  

Recommendations 

3.18. Members are asked to note the follow up actions set out in paragraphs 
3.12 to 3.17 to this report with a view to reporting back to the Board on 
any key output from the next pilot study in Bow Arrow Lane. As with the 
study in St Johns Road, Officers will be supporting local ward members 
through the Working Group.  
 

4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan 
 
ET4 – Ensure a high quality street scene. 
 
 
 
 

Page 16Agenda Item 8



                              

JOINT TRANSPORTATION BOARD 
09 MARCH 2021 

 

 

 
5. Financial, legal, staffing and other implications and risk assessments* 
 

Financial Implications None. 

Legal Implications None. 

Staffing Implications None. 

Administrative 
Implications 

None. 

Risk Assessment None 

 
 
6. Details of Exempt Information Category 
 
 Not applicable. 
 
 
7. Appendices 
 

Appendix A – Prioritising the investigation and implementation of 
Parking Management Schemes – Guidance 
 
Appendix B – Summary of the comments received for St Johns Road 
Pilot Study 
 
Appendix C – Proposed At Any time waiting restrictions at Almond Road 
junction with St Johns Road (KCC) 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Documents consulted Date / 
File Ref 

Report Author Section and 
Directorate 

Exempt 
Informatio

n 
Category 

 
 xxxxx Full name: 

Paul Nevard 
Transport Engineer 
(01322) 343216 

Planning 
Services, 
Regeneration 

N/A 

 

Page 17 Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18



   April 2020 v0.1, updated 02 July 2020 V0.5a 

         1 of 7 
 

Prioritising the investigation and implementation of Parking Management Schemes – Guidance 

Background 

This guidance note provides Council officers and local Ward Councillors with a formalised and consistent approach for developing 

and implementing parking management schemes. It takes into consideration existing Cabinet approval protocols and applicable 

statutory requirements. This will also ensure that residents are given clear information about how concerns raised about parking 

issues are addressed and will support engagement with Kent County Council (KCC), who are the highway authority, to progress 

parking schemes.   

There are related guidance documents that have been previously produced by the Council including ‘Parking Services – DBC 

permit parking management scheme delivery process – May 2016’ and ‘Parking Services - it’s not just about enforcement – 

September 2016’. However, it is acknowledged further guidance is required to formalise how the Council prioritises how it 

investigates concerns raised by local residents on wide ranging parking issues and allocates its limited resources to identifying 

potential solutions for implementation. 

Currently, the Council introduces parking management schemes where there is strong pressure from local residents to implement a 

scheme. Given the Council’s limited resources, this allows for two schemes a year on average. Prioritisation is normally based on 

the order of Cabinet approval following promotion of a scheme by local ward Members. Appendix 1 shows the output of the current 

priority listing.  

The demand for schemes to address ongoing pressure on parking in the Borough is increasing particularly in and around Dartford 

Town Centre exacerbated by new developments. The Council is in the process of expanding the resources available through 

recruitment of additional staff to enable increased implementation of Parking Management Schemes. The recruitment process, 

however, take several months, so the additional staff will not be in place immediately.   At the same, it is proposed to provide Ward 

Councillors with guidance for taking a residents’ scheme forward, as well as developing a more robust approach to appraising 

parking issues and prioritising schemes for implementation. The Councillor guidance and proposed approach for prioritising the 

investigation of reported parking issues is outlined below and the full process from initiation to implementation is shown in the flow 

chart in Figure 1. 

P
age 19

A
genda Item

 8



   April 2020 v0.1, updated 02 July 2020 V0.5a 

         2 of 7 
 

Figure 1 - Flow Chart on prioritisation and Implementation of parking schemes

 

 

1. 
Initiation  

Stage

•Ward Councillor receives representations / requests from local residents regarding parking issues

• Ward Councillor to seek justification for the Council to allocate resource to investigate (***see prioritisation categories and notes under 'Prioritisation of Parking 
Schemes' below).

•Is there a proposed scheme / measures planned already approved or in progress to address concerns? (Yes  / No).

2. Initial 
Review 
Stage

•If Yes - Confirm how issues will be addressed, implementation date or is matter enforcement related?

•If Enforcement related, refer to Enforcement Team to deal with and inform complainant of any agreed actions accordingly.

3.

Priority 
Review 
Stage

•If No - Rank on priority list subject to approval by Lead Cabinet Member for agreeing pipeline of priority Parking schemes based on outcome of Stages 1 and 2 above.

•If assessment does not meet prioritisation criteria, no further action is taken. As per Council protocol, reported issue at the same location cannot be considered for another 
year.

4.

Priority 
Allocation 

Stage

•Ranking under Stage 3 triggers allocation for further investigation and identification of timescale in view of other existing projects already on the list

5. 
Feasibility  

Stage 

•Undertake site investigation: Surveys, household numbers, access to offstreet parking, assessment of ongoing parking related issues and any road safety concerns.

•Analyse findings of survey information and site investigation.

•Develop potential solutions and options: Possible introduction of Controlled Parking Zones, Residents and Meter Parking Bays, single or double yellow lines and road safety 
measures close to schools and at specific locations.

6. 

Informal 
Consultation 

Stage

•Undertake informal consultation on proposals with local residents and Ward Councillors - Two week period.

•Review  consultation responses (support for a scheme or a preferred option or not).

•Present report to the Joint Transportation Board  for recommendation and to Cabinet for approval - Recommendation to proceed with implementation based on 50% 
support by households of affected street. If less than 50%, consideration given to highlighted road safety issue. Otherwise, in accordance to protocol, matter cannot be 
considered by the Council for another year.

•Inform consultees of outcome of Cabinet decision. If approved, proceed to formal/statutory consultation (Traffic Regulation Order process - TRO ).

7. 

Formal 
Consultation   

Stage

•Start TRO process - Produce new or amended draft traffic Order, Public Notice, Statement of Reasons and relevant plans.

•Publish draft Order Notice with Deposited Documents made available and available to those affected for a 21 day statutory consultation period  (ensure that any objections 
are resolved). Also send documents to local Ward Counciillors and statutory consultees via email / post.

•Publish Made Order Notice with Deposited Documents made available and accessible to those affected for six weeks statutory consultation period (ensure that any 
objections are resolved). Also send documents to local Ward Councillors and statutory consultees via email / post. Made Order to be Sealed in collaboration with Kent 
County Council.

In
it

ia
ti

o
n

 &
 

P
ri

o
ri

ti
sa

ti
o

n
 

In
ve

st
ig

at
io

n
 &

 

C
o

n
su

lt
at

io
n

 
P

age 20
A

genda Item
 8



   April 2020 v0.1, updated 02 July 2020 V0.5a 

         3 of 7 
 

 Prioritisation of Parking Schemes 

The table below provides criteria which will support how the Council makes decisions on how it allocates resources to undertake 

detailed investigation for potential parking management schemes. 

Category 1 – Serious Safety 

Evidence of significant safety issues/risks - Based on crash and casualty data information available from KCC via 

crashdata@kent.gov.uk. More information is available via https://www.kent.gov.uk/roads-and-travel/road-safety/crash-and-casualty-

data. Persistent casualty types or trends over a three to five year period provides justification for further investigation in 

collaboration with KCC. 

Category 2 – Moderate Safety 

Evidence of some potential safety issues/ risks – Based on observed incidences categorised as per items 2-6 under ‘Evidence of 

safety issues’ below. Confirmed repeated incidences over a three month period contributes towards the justification for further 

investigation in collaboration with KCC. 

 Evidence regarding ‘near misses’ / damage-only accidents - The values for preventing road accidents applied in COBALT include 

an allowance for damage only accidents. Statistics on damage only accidents are not generally available – because they are not 

comprehensively reported to the police – so instead survey information is used to estimate the occurrence of damage only 

accidents. COBALT assumes that damage only accidents occur at a rate of 17.7 per personal injury accident on urban roads, 7.8 

on rural roads and 7.6 on motorways, and that these rates remain constant over time. Reference - See link to report below. 

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/370908/TAG_Unit_A4.1_-

_Social_Impact_Appraisal_January2014.pdf 

 

Category 3 – Significant Parking Pressures – To determine whether parking issues impact residents in their immediate or wider 

locality and when the impact is greatest. 

Evidence of significant parking displacement for majority of residents in street contributes towards the justification for further 

investigation by the Council. 

P
age 21

A
genda Item

 8

mailto:crashdata@kent.gov.uk
https://www.kent.gov.uk/roads-and-travel/road-safety/crash-and-casualty-data
https://www.kent.gov.uk/roads-and-travel/road-safety/crash-and-casualty-data
https://mail1.dartford.gov.uk/enduser/classify_url.html?url=uSromneRILaQbKyNIt2m6Qagtf2A1D5AoykEPmbI9nOPH0grlGQJoF62Lhzn4Y2kLhZK78NSHH0MclNwV5DfJ4k6L2jBEv2vT8wmV4s4OtlNekP6WAOyWIb1BEoVFGUHw7iKLLbSzAVywDUnTqumxUDUv94FbJtXZssmzkM0fxuhwJXfUkM7d9oLnkCF6/GZt2CqDtZ6Bzb0fQ/QI4mg9Q==
https://mail1.dartford.gov.uk/enduser/classify_url.html?url=uSromneRILaQbKyNIt2m6Qagtf2A1D5AoykEPmbI9nOPH0grlGQJoF62Lhzn4Y2kLhZK78NSHH0MclNwV5DfJ4k6L2jBEv2vT8wmV4s4OtlNekP6WAOyWIb1BEoVFGUHw7iKLLbSzAVywDUnTqumxUDUv94FbJtXZssmzkM0fxuhwJXfUkM7d9oLnkCF6/GZt2CqDtZ6Bzb0fQ/QI4mg9Q==


   April 2020 v0.1, updated 02 July 2020 V0.5a 

         4 of 7 
 

Category 4 – Limited Parking Pressures - To determine whether parking issues impacts residents in their immediate or wider 

locality and when the impact is greatest. 

Evidence of some parking displacement but limited proportion of residents affected contributes towards the justification for further 

investigation by the Council. 

Category 5 – Support of local residents and Ward Councillors - To confirm support of local residents and Ward Councillors. 

Evidence of majority support of local residents and all Ward Councillors to provide justification for further investigation by the 

Council. 

Category 6 – Evidence of Parking Pressures within Area of Significant Parking Pressure in the Borough - To confirm 

location is within the boundary of the Town Centre. Demand to address ongoing pressure on parking in the Borough is increasing in 

and around the Town Centre. 

Priority List Ranking 

Note: Ranking is based on a ‘traffic lights’ system using evidence-based approach shown in the table below.  

Level 1 Ranking 

Review shows the majority of ‘Yes’ boxes being ticked from each evidence-based table below in each category. Reported issue will 

be included in the Council’s programme of Priority Listing of issues to be investigated further.  

Level 2 Ranking 

Ranking of the programme on the priority list for new items will be based on the highest number of ‘Red’ achieved under the 

relevant criteria for each evidence-based section in the table below, followed by the highest number of Amber achieved in each 

evidence-based area. 

 

 

 

 

P
age 22

A
genda Item

 8



   April 2020 v0.1, updated 02 July 2020 V0.5a 

         5 of 7 
 

In order to carry out the prioritisation, Ward members should provide the following information/evidence: 

 EVIDENCE OF SAFETY  ISSUES 
Note:  
Crash data available via Kent County Council. Criteria includes: 
– six collisions over a three year period within an initial 50m diameter on 40mph roads or less in an urban setting or four collisions 

over a three year period within an initial 50 diameter on 50mph roads or above in a rural setting. 
– Observations of ‘near misses’ during the week and weekends as applicable over at least a three month period. Two (urban roads) 

and one (rural roads) near misses or more expected with video evidence for a potential high safety risk site. 
– Visibility obstruction based on photographic evidence showing repeated occurrence at busy periods. 

– Access problems for emergency and refuse vehicles based on photographic evidence showing repeated occurrence at busy periods. 

R A G 

1. Collision trend based on three year crash data established (related to identified parking issue) 
2. Observed ‘near misses’ over a significant period i.e. three months or more 
3. Pedestrian accident data/ observed pedestrian near misses? 
4. Visibility obstructed turning out of road 
5. Pedestrian visibility obstructed in crossing road 
6. Ability of emergency and refuse vehicles to gain access? 

Yes  / No  
Yes  / No  
Yes  / No   
Yes  / No   
Yes  / No   
Yes  / No  

   

   

   

   

   

   

    

EVIDENCE OF RESIDENTS PARKING DISPLACEMENT PROBLEMS 
Note: Observations during the week and weekends as applicable over at least a four week period based on photographic evidence 
showing repeated occurrence. 

 

   

1. How far parking displaced: 
a) Further down road 
b)  to adjacent streets 
c) at least 2 streets away 
 

2. Times when displaced: 

 Daytime 

 Evenings 

 Weekends 
 

 
Yes  / No  
Yes  / No  
Yes  / No  
 
 
Yes  / No  
Yes  / No  
Yes  / No  
 
 

   

   

   

   

   

   

P
age 23

A
genda Item

 8



   April 2020 v0.1, updated 02 July 2020 V0.5a 

         6 of 7 
 

3. What impacts it has (considered in relation to 1 & 2 above): 

 Inability to park close to home 

 Road width restricted - vehicles unable to pass each other or access street 
 

 

Yes  / No  
Yes  / No  

   

   

   

    

EVIDENCE OF SUPPORT OF LOCAL RESIDENTS / WARD MEMBERS 
 

    

1. Majority of local residents in favour of a parking scheme 
2. All ward Members in favour of a parking scheme 

Yes  / No  
Yes  / No  

   

   

    

 
EVIDENCE OF IDENTIFIED PARKING ISSUES WITHIN AREA OF SIGNIFICANT PARKING PRESSURE IN THE 
BOROUGH 

   

1. Near shopping areas 
2. Near stations and major bus terminals 
3. Near schools 
4. Near community facilities 

Yes  / No   
Yes  / No  
Yes  / No   
Yes  / No  

   

   

   

   

    

 

Key 

R High 
Priority 

A Medium 
Priority 

G Low 
Priority 

 

 

P
age 24

A
genda Item

 8



   April 2020 v0.1, updated 02 July 2020 V0.5a 

         7 of 7 
 

APPENDIX 1 – Sample of the Priority List of Parking Management Schemes 

 See attached A3 sized list. 

P
age 25

A
genda Item

 8



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 26



Appendix B – Dartford Borough Council - Adopted Parking Guidance on the 
Prioritisation of Reported Parking Issues and Parking Management Schemes 
Summary of the comments received for St John’s Road Pilot Study 
 
 

St Johns Road – Comments Summary 

 
The biggest issue is that the School markings are being used for children collection as 
the operating hours are from 4 pm and do not cover the half day closing. 
 

 
St Johns Road Garage and Two Techs Garage create parking issues within St Johns 
Road.  Their customers park their vehicles on the road and some of them are left there 
for months at a time.  I know they have a large parking area off road and some of the 
vehicles that are parked there have been there for years. 
 

 
Cars are left parked on the corners of The Terraces, Nursery and Almond Road making 
it difficult for drivers with poor visibility and sightlines.  Almond Road is a particular issue 
with regular parking across the junction. 
 

 
The one way system suggested previously for St Johns Road would have helped some 
of the problems experienced.  Could we not have traffic calming measures - such as 
sleeping policemen and width restrictions? 
 

 
Could the school have a one way drive in and out and drop off point for the children. 
Maybe a staggered time for the kids coming out but not all at once. 
 

 
The Council should pay for white lines where houses have dropped kerbs, and where 
there are no dropped kerbs outside houses we should be painting double yellow lines. 
 

 
In terms of the problems outside the school, there should be time limited drop off points 
for parents to park. Drivers should park on Cotton Lane and use the parking options 
there where possible. 
 

 
Vehicles parked over the driveway of a house that is on the corner of Almond Road. This 
creates lots of issues for the residents. 
 

 
Cars tend to use the road as a race track, especially after 6 pm. 
 

 

Page 27 Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 28



Appendix C – Dartford Borough Council - Adopted Parking Guidance on the 
Prioritisation of Reported Parking Issues and Parking Management Schemes  

 

Proposed waiting restrictions to Almond Road j/w St Johns Road 

 

Page 29 Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 30



JOINT TRANSPORTATION BOARD 
03 MARCH 2021 

 

MINOR SCHEMES LIST – VARIOUS LOCATIONS 

Below is a list of locations with identified Traffic Regulation Order schemes to be progressed under delegated powers for 

information. 

Location 

Id 

Location Identified Issues Raised By / Original 

Complainant 

Proposal Length of restrictions 

1 

 

Kent Road, 

Longfield – 

Town Ward 

 

Existing time 

limited bays are 

impacting the 

doctor surgery 

New Barn Parish 

Council 

Amend the bays from a 

time limited stay bay to 

DPPB’s max stay 3 hours 

 

14 metres of bays 

Just TRO amendment and 

signs amended on site 

accordingly 

2 

 

 

Priory 

Gardens, 

Dartford – 

West Hill 

Ward 

Parking across 

driveway at 

junction.  Existing 

DYL opposite 

junction and to 

one side, but 

space remains for 

one car to park 

inconveniently 

Resident Minor amendments to 

Double Yellow Lines to add 

restrictions to the opposite 

side of the junction that are 

‘missing’ 

7m of At Any time waiting 

restrictions at junction of Priory 

Gardens 

3 

 

 

Mill Road, 

Hawley -  

Wilmington, 

Sutton-at-

Hone & 

Hawley 

Ward 

Existing DYL 

leaves a gap that 

creates a parking 

issue.  The 

existing DYL 

require a short 

length extension 

Resident (with 

access issues due 

to disability) 

Minor extension to existing 

restrictions 

5m extension of At Any time 

waiting restrictions to the 

boundary of 1b and Avlon Mill 

Road 

P
age 31

A
genda Item

 9



JOINT TRANSPORTATION BOARD 
03 MARCH 2021 

 

Location 

Id 

Location Identified Issues Raised By / Original 

Complainant 

Proposal Length of restrictions 

4 

 

 

St Vincents 

Road, 

Dartford – 

Newtown 

Ward 

Indiscriminate 

parking in the 

filter lane can 

cause a road 

safety concern 

and also obstruct 

the free flow of 

traffic 

Residents / Parking 

Services 

(enforcement issue 

raised) 

Introduce waiting and 

loading restrictions to the 

filter lane. 

Approx. 15 metres of restriction 

to prevent parking in the filter 

lane that can obstruct the free 

flow of traffic 

5 

 

 

Castle 

Street / 

Castle 

Road - 

Stone 

Castle 

Ward 

Parking at the 

junction can 

prevent access 

and create issues 

for larger vehicles 

Dartford Borough 

Council – Waste 

and recycling 

Install restrictions to 

protect junction 

5m of At Any time waiting 

restrictions either side of the 

junction 

6 Riverside 

Way, 

Dartford – 

Town Ward 

High parking 

levels creating 

issues for larger 

vehicles gaining 

access to units 

within the estate 

Councillor Dave 

Butler 

Conservative 

Member for Dartford 

North East & Bridge 

Ward 

 

UPS 

Minor extension to 

restrictions required to 

improve junction and also 

some additional restrictions 

to help the free flow of 

traffic for larger vehicles 

using the industrial estate 

At Any time waiting Restrictions 

proposed to Riverside Way 

junction, to the bend to provide 

a passing place and also at 

entrance of main units 

P
age 32

A
genda Item

 9



JOINT TRANSPORTATION BOARD 
03 MARCH 2021 

 

Location 

Id 

Location Identified Issues Raised By / Original 

Complainant 

Proposal Length of restrictions 

7 Millers 

Close / 

bakers 

Crescent, 

Dartford – 

West Hill 

Ward 

Parking at 

junction 

preventing access 

by larger vehicles 

Dartford Borough 

Council – Waste 

and recycling 

Install restrictions to 

protect junction 

Approx. 10 metres of At Any 

time waiting restrictions either 

side of junction 

8 

 

 

 

Whitecliffe 

Road – 

Ebbsfleet 

Ward  

Anomaly on the 

Traffic Order that 

requires 

correcting 

Councillor Nicklen 

Councillor Gosine 

 

Correct TRO to include 

Whitecliffe Road 

Whitecliffee Road added to the 

existing Restricted Zone - TRO 

 

9 Hayes 

Road, 

Greenthithe 

Parking during 

school peak times 

on the bend can 

obstruct visibility 

and interfere with 

the free flow of 

traffic 

Local resident Proposed At Any time 

waiting restrictions to the 

bend of Hayes Road  

30 metres of  At Any time 

waiting restrictions to the bend 

starting at common boundary of 

3 & 5 Hayes Road 

 

P
age 33

A
genda Item

 9



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 34



 

KENT COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

 

ENVIRONMENT & TRANSPORT CABINET COMMITTEE 
 
MINUTES of a meeting of the Environment & Transport Cabinet Committee held 
online on Thursday, 12 November 2020. 
 
PRESENT: Mr S Holden (Chairman), Mr R C Love, OBE (Vice-Chairman), 
Mr M A C Balfour, Mr R H Bird (Substitute for Mr A J Hook), Mr A Booth, Mr T Bond, 
Mr A H T Bowles, Mr D L Brazier, Mr I S Chittenden, Mr A Cook, Mr N J Collor, 
Mr A R Hills, Mr B H Lewis, Mr J M Ozog, Mr H Rayner and Mr M E Whybrow 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Miss S J Carey, Mr M D Payne and Mr M Whiting 
 
IN ATTENDANCE: Mr P Bhatti (Kent Resource Partnership Manager), Mrs B Cooper 
(Corporate Director of Growth, Environment and Transport), Mrs S Holt-Castle 
(Interim Director of Environment, Planning and Enforcement), Hymers, Mr D Joyner 
(Transport & Development Manager), Ms R Kennard (Chief Analyst, Strategic 
Commissioning Analytics), Mr R Kidd (Project Manager (Area Lead – Infrastructure)), 
Mrs E Milne (Flood Risk & Natural Environment Manager), Mr T Read (Head of 
Highway Transport), Mr D Smith (Director of Economic Development), 
Mrs S Thompson (Head of Planning Applications) and Miss E West (Democratic 
Services Officer) 
 

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS 
 
296. Apologies and Substitutes  
(Item 2) 
 
Apologies from absence had been received by Mr Hook. Mr Bird attended as a 
substitute for Mr Hook. In addition, Mr Bowles sent his apologies from 11:00 to attend 
an appointment. 
 
297. Declarations of Interest by Members in items on the Agenda  
(Item 3) 
 
Mr Collor declared an interest which related to item 10 on the agenda, as he was the 
Portfolio Holder for Transport, Licensing and Community at Dover District Council. 
 
298. Minutes of the meeting held on 15 September 2020  
(Item 4) 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 15 September 2020 be 
approved as a correct record and that they be signed by the Chairman. 
 
299. Verbal Update by Cabinet Member(s) and Corporate Director  
(Item 5) 
 
(1)   Mr Payne (Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport) gave a verbal update 

on the following issues: 
 

Page 35 Agenda Item 13



 

 

a) Mr Payne reassured Members of the Committee that work continued at 
pace to deliver a facility at Sevington, Ashford, by Kent Highways on behalf 
of the Department of Transport for Her Majesty’s government to provide a 
forward processing centre for HMRC and others for the transition which 
was due to start on 1st January 2021. He added that the surfacing work at 
the site had already begun and this included the truck-paved parking bays 
and also the swing lanes which had resumed after the recent period of wet 
weather. Whilst the continuation of work on the site was weather-
dependent, Kent County Council had been assured that HGVs would be 
able to use the site from 1st January 2021 and that HMRC would also be on 
site from that date. 

 
b) Mr Payne announced that the sweeps on one of Kent County Council’s 

eight windmills had turned again under wind power for the first time since 
1949, this was in the village of Chillenden and on 16th November 2020, the 
sweeps on the windmill in Cranbrook had been removed to enable a full 
evaluation of the required repairs. 

 
c) Mr Payne sent his best wishes to the two officers within Kent Highways 

who had fallen ill as a result of Covid-19 and wished them both a speedy 
recovery. In addition, he thanked all of the Kent Highways staff who 
continued to work hard throughout the period of lockdown on behalf of all 
of the residents of Kent. 

 
(2)   Miss Carey (Cabinet Member for Environment) gave a verbal update on the 

following issues: 
 

a) Miss Carey thanked Kent County Council’s staff for continuing to provide 
vital services to residents throughout the Covid-19 pandemic and in 
particular the Waste Management team for their hard work and resilience 
in implementing a number of major contracts that were due to be 
renewed. Miss Carey specifically referred to the smooth handover of a 
large number of Kent’s household waste and recycling centres to a new 
contractor. 
 

b) Miss Carey announced that Kent County Council’s Energy team had won 
an award for the Sustainable Energy Project of the year for the project 
that they had led for Northfleet School for Girls in solar installation and 
LED lighting upgrade. Kent County Council had now engaged with over 
100 of Kent’s schools in similar projects. 

 
c) Miss Carey said the District Heating item had been deferred as the 

Energy team had only won a major grant from the Government for the 
scheme and BEIS wished to take the lead in announcing the details of 
this.  

 
(3)   Both Mr Payne and Miss Carey gave their best wishes to Mrs Cooper upon the 

announcement of her retirement plans for 2021. They both thanked her for her 
tireless work and dedication to the service over many years. 

 
(4)   Mrs Cooper (Corporate Director of Growth, Environment and Transport) gave 

a verbal update on the following issues: 

Page 36Agenda Item 13



 

 

 
a) Mrs Cooper referred to the Brexit transition period on 1st January 2021 and 

said that Kent County Council continued to work closely with partners in 
districts, the Department for Transport, HMRC and Highways England on 
the granular detail of the plans. She said that a further all-Member briefing 
would take place on 1st December 2020 at 10:30am which would provide 
further information to Members in relation to the plans. She added that 
whilst Kent County Council were planning for the transition itself and 
potential spells of bad weather, there was also much work being 
undertaken with health colleagues in relation to Covid-19 and a possible 
vaccine roll-out.  
 

(5)   In response to a question, Mrs Cooper referred to a letter from Unite about 
their lack of involvement in discussions about facilities at the Sevington lorry park 
or other truck stops. She said that whilst Unite had not been involved in the 
discussions the Kent Resilience Forum (KRF) had taken up the issues which 
related to the facilities on site at Sevington and Manston in particular to ensure 
that full medical and welfare facilities were available on both sites. The KRF had 
been fully supported by the Department of Health and Social Care in the provision 
of those facilities. 
 

(6)   In response to a question, Mr Payne referred to the potential of a new site at 
Dover and said that such a site would be part of Kent’s 200-day plan and not part 
of the 1st January transition plan. 

 
(7)   In response to a question, Mr Payne referred to Kent’s School Street Scheme 

and the early trial of the scheme in St Peters footway area, he said that the 
possibility for the support for something such as the 20mph scheme would be fully 
evaluated in due course. 

 
(8)   In response to a question, Mrs Cooper referred to the ongoing discussions 

between Kent, the Department for Transport and Highways England to ensure 
that Dover would be kept clear during transition as a live project which was 
supported by the local MP.  

 
(9)   In response to a question, Mrs Cooper referred to the Traffic Assessment 

Projects (TAP) A256 and A20 and said that these were the filters that lorries 
moved forward to and were then released down into the port of Dover. She said 
that because the lorries were released very quickly, there would be no toilet 
facilities. She added that discussions with borough councils in relation to parking, 
cleansing and litter issues continued to take place. 

 
(10)  The Chairman reiterated the comments which had been made by the Cabinet 

Members in relation to Mrs Cooper’s retirement. Members of the Committee 
supported this. 

 
(11)  RESOLVED that the verbal updates be noted. 
 
300. Performance Dashboard  
(Item 6) 
 

Page 37 Agenda Item 13



 

 

Ms R Kennard (Chief Analyst) and Mr D Beaver (Head of Commercial Management 
and Waste Services, Highways Transportation and Waste) were in attendance for 
this item 
 
(1)   Ms Kennard introduced the Performance Dashboard which set out the progress 

against targets set for Key Performance Indicators (KPIs), with the latest 
Dashboard including data up to September 2020. 14 of the 18 KPIs achieved 
target and were RAG rated green, one KPI was below target but did achieve the 
floor standard and were therefore RAG rated amber, and three KPIs did not 
achieve floor standard and were therefore RAG rated red. 
 

(2)   Mr Payne (Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport) referred to KPI ‘HT12: 
Streetlights, illuminated signs and bollards repaired in 28 calendar days’ within the 
Performance Dashboard and said that the figure for the month of September 2020 
was 81% and did not yet appear within the Performance Dashboard. He added 
that none of the lights had stopped working, it was merely a communication issue. 

 
Officers then responded to a number of comments and questions from Committee 
Members, which included the following: - 
 

a) In response to questions on the wide variation in performance across Kent 
for recycling and other Miss Carey (Cabinet Member for Environment) said 
those districts with the lowest rates of recycling and highest weight  of waste 
per household were also those that still collected waste weekly. She said 
that new legislation was expected that would require councils to collect food 
waste separately which would provide an opportunity to look again at how 
recycling might be improved. KCC was continuing to work with all the 
district/borough councils to reduce waste and increase recycling. She 
referred to the effect the Covid-19 pandemic had had on the amount of 
waste that households in Kent had produced in recent months and 
emphasised the importance of partnership working between Kent County 
Council and district/borough councils to educate and encourage the 
appropriate disposal of waste. 

 
b) Mr Beaver agreed with Miss Carey’s remarks. He also explained that the 

reduction in composted waste in WM01 and WM03 was thought to be the 
result of the prolonged hot and dry weather in July and August which had 
less to less garden waste. This also had the effect of reducing disposal 
costs. He added that overall, there would be a significant increase in the 
levels of kerbside-collected waste as more people were spending time at 
home as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic. 

 
c) Mr Payne referred to KPI ‘HT08: Emergency incidents attended to within 2 

hours’ and said that highways incidents were ranked according to the 
date/time in which they were received, and the severity of the incident. He 
reassured Members of the Committee that they could contact him with 
regards to specific incidents within their own divisions. 

 
d) Mrs Cooper confirmed the formal definition of ‘Emergency incidents’ as 

current and real danger incidents such as diesel on the road, tree branches 
across the road, missing gully covers, large potholes etc. 

 

Page 38Agenda Item 13



 

 

e) Miss Carey assured the Committee that carbon reduction target was on 
track even without the help from a reduction in some emissions during 
lockdown.  

 
f) Mr Beaver said the recent closure of the Allington Waste Management 

Facility was not reflected in the figures in this report as it was for the second 
quarter (July – September inclusive). This would closure would impact the 
landfill figures for Q3. Miss Carey undertook that the commentary in the next 
Performance Dashboard report would cover the situation with Allington.   

 
g) Mr Payne said that Kent’s Pothole Blitz strategy had significantly improved 

the condition of Kent’s roads. 
 

(3)   RESOLVED that the performance dashboard be noted. 
 
301. Kent Resource Partnership (Presentation)  
(Item 7) 
 
Mr P Bhatti (Kent Resource Partnership Manager) was in attendance for this item 
 
(1)   Mr Bhatti presented a series of slides to the Committee which set out 

information which related to the Kent Resource Partnership and its structure. 
 

(2)   Mr Bhatti confirmed that the Kent Resource Partnership Annual Report 2019/20 
would be available in the coming weeks and could be circulated to Members of 
the Committee. 

 
Mr Bhatti then responded to a number of comments and questions from Committee 
Members, which included the following: - 
 

a) Mr Bhatti emphasised the importance of referring to waste as a ‘resource’ 
as opposed to ‘rubbish’ and said that KRP actively encouraged residents 
and councils to adopt and replicate the term. 
 

b) Mr Bhatti referred to the points set out within the ‘What’s Next?’ slide of his 
PowerPoint presentation and said that in relation to government’s 
Resources and Waste Strategy, one of the key policies was extended 
producer responsibilities which placed the focus back on the producer to 
make change which was better for the environment, or face an increased 
production cost. From a KRP perspective, and with government consulting 
on key policies over the next 6 months, the KRP would influence and 
engage with local authorities across the country and others across the 
industry to ensure that the core packaging materials that were being used 
were easily recyclable. 
 

c) Mr Bhatti briefly referred to the KRP’s commitment to the charity WRAP 
(Waste & Resource Action Programme) who worked closely with 
government to deliver practical solutions to improve resource efficiency. 
 

d) Mr Bhatti emphasised the importance of the KRP working closely with all 
of Kent’s local authorities, businesses, and communities to be more efficient 
and to better understand the production of waste.  

Page 39 Agenda Item 13



 

 

 
(3)   RESOLVED that the report be noted. 
 
302. Design in Kent's Built Environment  
(Item 8) 
 
Mr M Whiting (Cabinet Member for Economic Development) and Mr R Kidd (Project 
Manager (Area Lead – Infrastructure)) were in attendance for this item 
 
(1)   Mr Whiting, Mr Payne (Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport) and Miss 

Carey (Cabinet Member for Environment) thanked Mr Smith and Mr Kidd and their 
colleagues in the work that they had carried out in ensuring sustainable design 
principles for Kent and Medway. 

 
(2)   Mr Kidd introduced the report which set out activity to raise the quality of design 

in Kent’s built environment. The report also addressed how the activity responded 
to the government’s proposed planning reforms in relation to design. He then 
presented and navigated through the Kent Design Guide website and explained 
each detail of the website to the Committee. 

 
Mr Kidd then responded to a number of comments and questions from Committee 
Members, which included the following: - 
 

a) Mr Kidd explained some of the significant challenges faced in relation to 
developers and the volume and quality of new-build houses. He said that in 
light of those challenges, it remained the responsibility of local planning 
authorities to hold developers to account in relation to the design of those 
houses. He said that the government’s white paper on planning reform 
would positively affect design and construction during all stages and said 
that very robust responses to government on planning matters would 
continue. 
 

b) Mr Kidd referred to the design guide’s timescales and said that whilst there 
was still a significant amount of technical detail to explore, he was confident 
that the programme would be met. 
 

c) Mr Kidd confirmed that more information in relation to the local case 
studies referred to within the report would be presented in due course. 

 
d) Mr Kidd confirmed that he would seek further clarification outside of the 

meeting in relation to downloadable content on the Kent Design Guide 
website. 

 
(3)   RESOLVED that the report be noted. 
 
303. Kent's Plan Bee  
(Item 9) 
 
Ms E Milne (Natural Environment & Coast Manager) was in attendance for this item 
 
(1)   Miss Carey (Cabinet Member for Environment), the Chairman and Ms Milne 

introduced the report which informed Members of the Committee on how Kent 

Page 40Agenda Item 13



 

 

County Council was acting to reverse the decline of pollinators by delivering 
Kent’s Plan Bee. 

 
Officers then responded to a number of comments and questions from Committee 
Members, which included the following: - 
 

a) Ms Milne described how Rosie Earwaker, Bee Roads Officer for the Kent 
Wildlife Trust, had worked with the Infrastructure, Highways and the Public 
Rights of Way (PRoW) teams on implementing best practice in managing 
landscape proactively for pollinators.  
 

b) Ms Milne reported that Kent’s Plan Bee online summit was the most highly 
subscribed event run by KCC this year. Those registered to attend were 
from a broad range of sectors and included staff from across KCC itself. 

 
(2)   RESOLVED that the report be noted. 
 
304. Dover Fastrack Update  
(Item 10) 
 
Mr S Hymers (Fastrack Development Manager) was in attendance for this item 
 
(1)   Mr Payne (Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport) and Mr Hymers 

introduced the report which provided information which related to the Dover 
Fastrack service. 
 

(2)   In response to a question, Mr Hymers said that plans were in place for the Kent 
Thameside Fastrack service to be electric from 2022. He added that whilst the 
starting point for emission standards in Dover was Euro 6 Diesel, Kent Thameside 
Fastrack was a self-sustaining model and monies generated and reinvested in the 
service would enable progression in better fleet and infrastructure for the service.  

 
(3)   In response to a question, Mr Hymers said that whilst the fleet had not yet been 

specified, Kent Highways continued to work efficiently with the monies available. 
He said that Kent Highways had worked closely with Transport for London in 
relation to their ultra-low emissions zone measures and sharing best practice. 

 
(4)   Mr Payne talked about the modelling work that continued to be undertaken and 

the possibility of funding streams moving forward or working in consultation with 
other partners involved as they would benefit from the scheme. 

 
(5)   A Member of the Committee asked that it be recorded in the minutes that some 

residents had raised concerns in relation to emissions and had been advised that 
only new ultra clean buses would be specified. 

 
(6)   RESOLVED that the report be noted. 
 
305. 20/00104 - Kent Transport Model Support & Development Commission  
(Item 11) 
 

Page 41 Agenda Item 13



 

 

Mr D Joyner (Transport & Development Manager (West Kent)) and Mr T Read (Head 
of Transportation) was in attendance for this item 
 

(1)   Mr Payne (Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport) and Mr Joyner 
introduced the report which set out an overview of the key aspects of the Kent 
Transport Model and the Support & Development Commission and recommends 
the granting of delegated powers to award a contract, subject to the outcome of a 
procurement process. 
 

(2) Mr Payne and the Chairman emphasised that the proposal was not a proposal 
for Kent County Council to spend £15m, it sought to find an appropriate provider 
to deliver £15m of work that would be bought by individuals such as developers 
etc. The proposal was not part of the end of transition, it was a standalone 
proposal for the next ten years. 
 

(3) Mr Payne reminded Members of the Committee that they had already been 
given the opportunity to discuss the details of the Kent Transport Model Support & 
Development Commission proposal and the associated costs outside of the 
meeting, prior to the Cabinet Committee meeting taking place. 
 
Officers then responded to a number of comments and questions from Committee 
Members, which included the following: - 
 

a) Mr Joyner said that the determination of the availability and cost of data 
was a decision for the County Council. It would depend on who had 
commissioned the work and how it would be used. He gave examples in 
terms of supporting the Local Plan process and said that whilst there 
would be a cost involved for local groups with regards to obtaining data, it 
was not intended that this would be prohibitively costly. 
 

b) Mr Joyner said in terms of innovation, many transport modelling 
consultants were involved across different counties and countries. The 
commission would allow for future development including towards near 
real-time modelling to monitor traffic and travel, feed data into the model 
and implement solutions. Near real-time modelling had just started being 
introduced in York. It was intended that Kent would be able to take 
advantage of such technology. 
 

c) Mr Joyner said cycling journeys were not specifically included within the 
model, but the intention was to use other data, including cycling, 
alongside information from the model. 
 

d) Mr Payne emphasised the importance of adopting new technology early 
as a Council to put Kent in the forefront of thinking and to ease traffic and 
congestion issues in Kent.  
 

Page 42Agenda Item 13



 

 

e) In terms of public access to information, Mr Read said it would be set 
out in the fees and charges report which was reported annually to each of 
the Cabinet Committees. He said Members could be undated on and be 
able to comment on contracts and the award process. 
 

f) Mrs Cooper commended the report and said that it would provide a 
single model of the truth for different agencies to access. 
 

g) Mr Read reiterated the points made by Mr Joyner in relation to charging 
and said that the charge for information and what was charged for the use 
of the model was entirely a decision for the County Council, not the 
consultant.  
 

(4)   The Cabinet Committee endorses the proposed decision to be taken by the 
Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport to grant the Director of Highways, 
Transport & Waste delegated powers to award a contract to maintain and develop 
the Kent Transport Model and to run a scenario testing service on behalf of the 
County Council, subject to the outcome of a procurement process. The Cabinet 
Committee also recommends to the Cabinet Member that a further report be 
brought back to the Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee covering 
issues relating to availability of the data and the pricing. 

 
306. Consultation on Draft Statement of Community Involvement: Minerals and 
Waste Planning Policy and Planning Applications - Minerals and Waste and 
County Council Development  
(Item 12) 
 
Mrs S Thompson (Head of Planning Applications Group) was in attendance for this 
item 
 

(1)    Miss Carey (Cabinet Member for Environment) drew Members’ attention to a 
minor error within the report’s recommendation, which should have read: 
 
‘The Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee is asked to note and 
comment on the draft updated Statement of Community Involvement (as set out 
in Appendix 1) for public consultation, prior to approval by the Cabinet Member 
for Environment.’ 
 

(2)    Miss Carey and Mrs Thompson introduced the report which set out information 
relating to the consultation on the draft Statement of Community Involvement: 
Minerals and Waste Planning Policy and Planning Applications - Minerals and 
Waste and County Council Development (SCI). 

 
(3)    In response to a question which related to section 1.5 of the report, Mrs 

Thompson referred to the fourth bullet point and said that the intention of one of 
the key changes proposed to the current published SCI was to reflect that 
neighbour notification would become a discretionary part of the Council’s planning 
application process.  This reflected the practice of many planning authorities. She 
advised that awareness of planning applications would be supplemented with 
other engagement methods, for example additional notices and posters. 

Page 43 Agenda Item 13



 

 

 
(4)     RESOLVED that the report be noted. 
 
307. Work Programme  
(Item 13) 
 
RESOLVED that the Work Programme for 2020/21 be noted, subject to the inclusion 
of the following items: - 
 

 Heritage Strategy 

 District Heating Scheme 

 Cameras/sensors along with a broader overview on the Live Labs project 
 

Page 44Agenda Item 13


	Agenda
	3 To confirm the Minutes of the meeting of the Dartford Joint Transportation Board held on 8 December 2020
	6 Matters Arising from Previous Joint Transportation Board meetings
	Matters Arising report

	8 Prioritising the investigation of reported parking issues and parking management schemes: Outcome of St Johns Road Pilot study - Update
	Appendix A - Prioritising the investigation and implementation of Parking Management Schemes – Guidance JTB Feb 2021 v0.5adocx
	Appendix B
	Appendix C

	9 Minor "Traffic Regulation Orders" in Dartford
	13 KCC - Environment and Transport

